

Copyright 2008
All rights reserved. No part of this book may be reproduced in any form by photostat, microfilms, xerography, or any other means, or incorporated into any information retrieval system; electronic or mechanical, without the written permission of the copyright owner.
Printing history First printing 2009
Edited by Warren Curry, et al
PRINTED IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Notes Regarding the Recording and Transcription

The *In Pursuit of the Ultimate Frontier* series was remastered from the original ten-inch, reel-to-reel tapes that were recorded at ten inches per second and, thus, required no cleanup. Only occasionally were the following grammatical touches needed.

Textual Editings

- All punctuation
- Noun and pronoun agreement (case, number, and gender)
- Verb tense
- Subject-verb agreement
- Article use
- Dividing up of really, really long sentences
- Removal of extraneous and redundant words and phrases
- Creation of the topic titles and table of contents

Audio Remastering

• Tape hiss reduction

Table of Contents

Introduction	1
Signs of the "End Times"	2
The Catastrophic Effects of Earth Changes	3
Self-Defeating Responses to Earth Changes	6
Protecting Yourself Against Earth Changes	7
The Coming Changes	8
The Churchs' Response to Earth Changes	11
Predictions	12
The Coming Changes Clear the World's Karma	13
The Reign of the Antichrist	14
Preparing to Survive	14
Closing	16



In Memoriam

This transcription and the accompanying CDROM is a small tribute to the late Richard Kieninger who devoted his life toward the upliftment of mankind. Calling to the world through the message in his book, *The Ultimate Frontier*, he showed those who were looking for a better way of life how to build and govern the intentional communities of Stelle, Illinois and Adelphi, Texas. The need for a more peaceful and respectful way of life is evidenced by the fact that both these towns are alive and well to this day.

Thank you!

In Pursuit of The Ultimate Frontier

The End Times

A discussion with Richard Kieninger

Introduction

CHARLEY JONES: Hello, and welcome once again to "In Pursuit of the Ultimate Frontier." My name is Charley Jones, and I am your moderator for this week's discussion.

The discussion that you are about to listen to takes its basis from a book called, "The Ultimate Frontier," written by Richard Kieninger, under his pen name, Eklal Kueshana. Richard is with us in the studio today. Richard, welcome to the program.

RICHARD KIENINGER: Thank you Charley.

CJ: Today's discussion will center around a topic that many people have heard many things about, and held many and varied

beliefs about in ages past; a subject that has had enormous volumes of literature written concerning it. Now, the area we are going to deal with is the last twenty years of this century: the period from 1980 to the year 2000. Those years have been called, "The End Times," or "The End of Times," by many people across the recorded history of our planet. Suffice it to say, Richard, there is an enormous tradition in our belief structure here in the Twentieth Century that something outstanding is going to happen during these last twenty years.

RK: Well, it has already been the most exciting century so far. I guess it shouldn't surprise people that it could be even more exciting as time goes by. What most people latch on to more than anything else is: the idea of Armageddon, the great final war; Biblical references to the Antichrist; the judgment; resurrection; tribulation; and the Wrath of God. People who are not Christians also have in their traditions and mythologies many of the same kinds of references. Not necessarily pointing to religious aspects, but rather what is going to be happening in the way of a great change, is a great cleansing in human affairs of the planet.

Signs of the "End Times"

There have been psychics, persons who are sensitive to the future, who have the ability to read the Akashic Record; the future. Some are genuine prophets who have all seen, essentially, the same kinds of things, but it is always been difficult to pinpoint in time when these are going to occur. As soon as the nation of Israel was formed again, that alerted all the Biblical scholars, particularly those interested in prophecy, that these, indeed, were the End Times. There have been quite a few popular books written

on that subject. I suppose I don't need to repeat all the things that are readily available to anybody who has an interest. I would be mostly concerned with what the Brotherhoods have to offer about it, and what some of the modern-day psychics have to say about the various events that are leading up toward the turn of the century.

As I have said before, May 5, 2000 is the date of the grand alignment of all of the planets. The Earth and the Sun will be in a straight line which is predicted to have quite an effect on the planet and will cause the continents to slide. The great slide of the continents will not come unannounced. A whole series of major disasters will precede it, so that the wise person will know it is the time to do something constructive to survive the great cataclysm in May of the year 2000.

The Catastrophic Effects of Earth Changes

CJ: It certainly might be difficult to believe that your land development and your golf course and your swimming pool and your college or whatever were all going to be completely destroyed within a certain period of years.

RK: Or even tomorrow.

CJ: Or even tomorrow, indeed. Yet, this tradition that there is going to be destruction and apocalypse is so widespread, Richard, it permeates every fiber of the traditional fabric of this civilization. There is a lot of wonder, a lot of talk about what might happen, but there is very little real discussion about the events themselves. Maybe today we can add some dimension to that discussion. There have been calamities before that humanity has just barely

sustained itself through. Richard, as we discuss the coming calamity—these things that are in the Earth's near future—it might be wise to make a note here that this will certainly not be the first time that calamity has dogged the human race.

RK: In the year 1976, more than a million were killed in earthquakes. Our planet has some very strong forces to bring to bear: the force that Mt. St. Helens exploded with was a couple hundred times that of the atomic bomb that we dropped on Hiroshima. Hurricanes, for instance, contain as much energy as hundreds of H-bombs. It releases slowly over many days, and, although the power is tremendous, it doesn't complete destroy the land. Because we are used to those kind of things, but we really don't feel too terrified by them.

I think it is always wise to remember that when we talk about socalled "End Times" it is not the ultimate end of the planet or human life here. There are greater civilizations yet to be built by a remnant surviving a cataclysm which I also should remind people is not being brought about by Higher Intelligences. It merely is really a natural geophysical outworking of the construction of our planet as it is stressed by various forces inside and outside of the planet. Some Higher Beings are making Their plans for mankind's uplift coincide with these natural events rather than causing them.

CJ: The reason Mount St. Helens became so formidable to us is because this is the first volcanic occurrence of a major nature that we have had all the scientific equipment necessary to record. Mount St. Helens is really a drop in the bucket, when you consider, for example, that Krakatoa left a crater that is currently

under the ocean, and is eleven-hundred feet deep and six miles long.

RK: We just have short memories, because Mount St. Helens did much the same thing back in 1900, and several times through the eighteen-hundreds.

CJ: Yes, and Mount Hood and Mount Rainer joined in those seismic episodes, if I recall.

RK: That is correct. One of the tallest volcanoes in the world is Mount Shasta in northern California. It has erupted vigorously quite a few times in the last ten-thousand years. Aerial surveys taken of it recently with infrared-sensitive film indicated there are some hotspots forming near the summit.

CJ: Is Mount Shasta a member of the Cascade Range?

RK: Yes, it is. Obviously, the largest and most powerful. There have been times in the past hundred years when a couple of volcanoes exploded without any forewarning whatsoever: no earthquakes or puffs of steam or anything. They were just sitting there normally and all of a sudden the top came off. That kind of thing can be expected among many volcanoes throughout the world during this next twenty years.

We also have just entered a period of time when certain planetary alignments, which have long been correlated with increased seismic activity on the Earth, have produced a situation between 1982 and 1988, where we can anticipate worldwide volcanism on a rather unprecedented scale, so far as anything in our memory

is concerned. About a half-dozen, or so, volcanoes spewing out ash as Mount St. Helens recently did, we would have not have a decent crop in this country.

CJ: In Europe, the year after Krakatoa erupted, there wasn't a summer.

RK: Right.

CJ: The ash belt was so thick that it kept the Sun out.

RK: Even scientists are noting that we are in for some rather unusual seismic and volcanic events, and all of this within the next six years. Some of the earthquakes are likely to be extremely severe, as the last time this occurred was around two-hundred years ago.

I'm afraid these things are going to become reality in the very near future. People foresee not only Earth changes but economic difficulties and religious and political strife bringing about great bloodshed. The United States is very likely to be involved in World War III which will be before Armageddon. Psychics predict that that World War will end by 1986. The United States had always been sparred having wars with foreign powers waged on its soil, but now it will come home to us.

Self-Defeating Responses to Earth Changes

CJ: Richard, one thing I think about when I think about the incredible nature of some of these changes that we are talking about is that this is going to have a profound effect on people everywhere. They will begin to realize that they are in the End

Times, as forecast in the Bible and other sources of recorded prophecy across the ages. Will this be what causes them to band together and do something constructive?

RK: I think there is going to be two general responses. One that this is the end; the world is going to be completely destroyed so there is nothing to be done except await your fate.

Protecting Yourself Against Earth Changes

And then there are others who have picked up on Brotherhood information that survival will be possible for at least a tenth of the population of the world. In order to retain some semblance of civilization, preparation has to be made for the event if and when it occurs. I think it is necessary that every prudent man think that this is a possibility, because so much has been said from so many different fields of study. Many scientists—those who study cycles—are all indicating that around the turn of the century all of these things are going to coincide into something which is more profound than we have experienced before. I think it is wise that everybody taking an ocean trip have some form of life-raft. That is what the sane family man should do also. If I give a list of things which are predicted, and one after another is coming true, then you can assume that more of them are going to be coming true and the whole pattern will fall into place, as the Brotherhoods have said.

One of the reasons I am talking about these things is so that people will gather together to protect themselves, to build the things necessary for their survival, and hope that they will never need them. But, if they do need them, there they are. It is like the farmers who, essentially, live out in completely isolated areas,

and depend entirely upon their own resources for survival from year to year. They knew winter was coming. Every year they knew winter was coming. When they had their larder completely stocked, the fuel supply put aside, everything necessary to take care of the cattle and whatever they needed for next year, then it didn't make any difference what came. They felt secure. I think that is a good attitude for people to have, and to join together with people who, technologically, have made preparations against these highly-probable cataclysms.

The Coming Changes

CJ: Since there is so much convergence on major occurrences among the psychics, let's rundown the list, here.

RK: Well, we can expect large-scale earthquakes in California and Western Canada and Alaska. We will also see the Imperial Valley flood. The last time it did it was part of the ocean, about eight-hundred years ago. It dried out for awhile, and now it's slated again to become part of the ocean. San Diego, Los Angeles, and San Francisco will suffer severe destruction. Vancouver and British Columbia will all be threatened with earth changes. In the Great Lakes and the St. Lawrence Seaway, there will be earthquakes, because of the accelerated glacial rebound by the weight of the ice that has been lifted from the Canadian geological shield. Some of the stresses will be relieved by sudden faulting, which, of course, produce earthquakes. There are supposed to some "warning" earthquakes in cities such as St. Louis and Memphis. It is likely that a major earthquake will destroy a large part of New York City, and earthquakes in the Washington, DC, Philadelphia, and Baltimore along the Hudson Fault and extensions of it.

CJ: You deal with an area that many people are simply not aware of. The fact that the northeastern part of our country, especially the Seaboard areas, in some cases, are as seriously faulted as the West Coast.

RK: Right. The most severe earthquake that has ever occurred in recorded history of the United States was in Illinois back in the early eighteen-hundreds. It caused the town of New Madrid, in Missouri, to relocate and become the city of St. Louis. That changed the course of the Mississippi River and formed Reelfoot Lake in Tennessee. It was a rather sizeable quake inasmuch as it rang church bells in Baltimore and Atlanta.

We will have increasingly harsh weather patterns between now and 1985 with food shortages beginning in the United States. The government will barely able to help all these stricken areas mainly because of economic difficulties which, I think most people are already aware of, could get out of hand and cause severe economic dislocations.

CJ: The California Earthquake Preparedness Project projection said that were the earthquake intensity of the 1906 San Francisco earthquake to reoccur along world's most expensive and heavily built real estate, that the United States would have to outlay funds equal to the Viet Nam excursion, to repair the damage.

RK: It may sound like the Earth is going to pick on the United States to cause all this havoc, but other parts of the world will also be having difficulties. In the five years between 1985-1990, we can look forward to a major tidal wave destruction and earthquakes damaging India and Japan. On the other side of the

world, there will be major eruptions of Vesuvius in Italy, Mt. Pelée on Martinique, and the western United States will continually being stricken by earthquakes. Then New York City will be completely broken up by a very powerful earthquake. This is before 1990. There will be land risings west of England and near Gibraltar possibly cutting off the connection between the Mediterranean Sea and the Atlantic.

CJ: A closing of the pillars of Hercules, eh?

RK: Yes. There will be lots of earthquakes in Syria, Iran, Iraq, and Israel itself. It's very possible that an earthquake will destroy the Dome of the Rock, which is the second most revered shrine in the Muslim religion.

CJ: If the Dome of the Rock, which as I recall now occupies the foundation of the ancient Temple of Solomon, were destroyed by earthquake, Richard, that would allow the Jews to begin construction of the Third Temple.

RK: Yes. That is correct. I have heard from Israelis that all the materials for the construction of the Temple have already been gathered together in various stages of pre-construction, hidden away in different parts of the world, to be rapidly brought together to complete construction of the Temple of Solomon.

CJ: You are asserting that the fabrication of the Third Temple is already complete and awaits only assembly?

RK: That is what I am told by people who I think are definitely reliable sources. The United States economy during this period

will falter, and probably require a complete change in the political makeup of the United States. This may give rise to something akin to a military dictatorship in order to hold together the country, because of the panic that's involved with economic difficulties. The results of this may be internal strife amounting to almost civil war, and also attack by outside enemies actually carrying battles into the United States itself. Then, during the last decade of this century, major sections of the western United States will subside, and cause a loss of many of the coastal cities. Then there will be a major submergence in the Great Lakes area with portions of Wisconsin, Michigan, and Illinois going under water. Eastern coastal states, such as South Carolina and New Jersey, will be inundated by the ocean, and destruction of Atlanta, Georgia by inundation and earthquakes. There may be large quakes and coastal inundations in Connecticut and Massachusetts, and major submergence in eastern Texas, Florida, and Louisiana. Of course, other parts of the world will be experiencing changes also: major quakes in China and the USSR, Turkey, Yugoslavia, and parts of the British Isles will begin to submerge and other parts rise. The ocean will actually be brought to London's door.

The Churchs' Response to Earth Changes

CJ: Richard, these are horrifying occurrences. The changes that they will create are—well, we are going to find out what people are really made of when this stuff starts happening, aren't we?

RK: Well, I think it will contribute mostly to a sense of madness or insanity, because of panic and despair. People who are aware of religious prophecies and what faces them will be preparing

for the end. They will be trying to decide whether or not to plant a crop for the next year, because they don't think there will be a next year. The shock of the changes that are involved will be so horrendous in most people's minds—and it keeps on happening month after month after month. It will bring out the worst in many people. The churches will be uniting and the power of the church will be turned over to people who will actually become tyrannical. Perhaps in trying to please God, they will decide to wipe out those individuals who appear to be in accord with evil, because they don't believe whatever faith it is that happens to get into power.

Predictions

CJ: Before we continue here, we might make the note that we are dealing in some instances with prophecy in today's discussion, and while all prophecy is speculation until it happens, the prophecies we are discussing have been similarly foreseen by many prophets across the ages. These are the occurrences forecast to happen during the last two decades of the Twentieth Century. So, we might make the proviso here, "He who hath an ear, let him hear."

Richard, we have been tending to center on the changes that will directly affect the continental Unites States. Could you outline for us, perhaps, the more significant earth changes that will occur in other places?

RK: Most of these things will occur after 1990. The rotational balance of the Earth will be increasingly disrupted by the buildup of ice in the Antarctic area. The magnetic field will be changing, and has been diminishing quite rapidly in the past few decades.

All of this is leading up to the year 2000 when the whole crust of the Earth will slip relative to the poles. They expect the United States to move about fifteen-hundred miles further toward the equator.

CJ: That is not a new occurrence. Until relatively recently, geologically speaking, Greenland and Siberia were tropical.

RK: Yes. There are coral beds and coal and what have you in Antarctic and in Greenland. These changes, as destructive as they are and as terrifying to the people who go through them, nevertheless will be opening the way to a far greater era in mankind's history where peace and a true spirituality will reign all over the world.

The Coming Changes Clear the World's Karma

CJ: But, we have to run the gauntlet first?

RK: Right. That has a great deal to do with our karma: the kinds of things we have made ourselves susceptible to by our free will actions relative to our dealings with other people and our nation's dealing with other nations. We have it coming, as it were. We have been a fearful, hateful, and greedy lot. Satanic forces have had free reign in doing what they wanted to do up until Christ limited their power. But, now people have been dealing of their own free will with nether entities, and the Shamballa and Agarthi doing their best to give rise to the Antichrist who will take power in Europe and, through his influences, bring about a great world war at the turn of the century which will culminate in Armageddon.

The Reign of the Antichrist

CJ: Could you expand your remarks on this Antichrist, alleged to come to power and take us to the end of the century?

RK: The things that most of us would be interested in would be the great tribulation. That begins in 1993 and would last for about three and one-half years. Essentially, this could be considered a war against the Saints; those persons who are spiritually refined and Egoically developed: people who are, in many cases, allied with the Brotherhoods. Of course, this will be brought about primarily by the Antichrist and the Shamballa and Agarthi who manage to place him into power.

After that there is another three and one-half year period called the "Wrath of God." That is the title, at any rate, but I am certain that God or the Higher Beings would not be directly be involved in destroying people. They need merely allow the karma of our past sins to be returned to Earth for us to work out. This represents the unatoned sins that Christ suspended when He removed the sins of the world twenty centuries ago, in which are intended to be held in abeyance until the end of this century. About the time of the great tribulation, the one-hundred and forty-four thousand elect from all over the world will be gathered together in a peaceful area of the Earth, where they will be exempted from this battling between the evil doers of the world. They will then be protected from the seismic cataclysm by the airlift at the turn of the century. This is the projection that has been given me by the Brotherhoods.

Preparing to Survive

CJ: We can say, then, that it is directly because these events are on their way and cannot be stopped, that Stelle and Adelphi

will be developing technology that will enable civilization to survive these outworkings of national and individual karma?

RK: That is our assignment, at any rate.

CJ: Is it the contention of the Stelle and Adelphi people that they have both the location and the situation to accomplish these things?

RK: If my Teachers are correct, and so far I have yet to find Them in error, we will have the locations necessary to repair to.

It will not be a sane world. Even the psychologically stable, loving person will be sorely troubled by the disruption of everything that is familiar. Seeing everything that you have held dear crumble before your very eyes is going to be more than most people can handle unless they are aware that there is a place which is doing something to hold things together in the face of all this chaos. They will just crumble in despair.

CJ: So, the forthcoming events are not going to change anyone's mind? It is just going to confirm things that certain people have already thought. If this information appeals to you, you already know who you are in your heart.

RK: I don't see many people changing their minds as a result of these things. You have to have it set in mind that you are here specifically to preserve the civilization and technology that is necessary for mankind to continue to move forward rather than slipping back seven-thousand years. You will find that in Stelle and Adelphi, and be attracted to it for those reasons.

Closing

CJ: Richard, we have certainly dolloped out some very emotionally heavy subject matter—

RK: And, I am kind of sorry about that, because the Brotherhoods message is one of hope, of preservation, of an oasis of sanity, and of looking forward to better things. That is what people are going to need in order to be saved. You have to do it yourself. Indeed, you have to get on the ball and get something done. God is not going to do it. By His Grace, we are given the information about how to protect ourselves, but we have to make ourselves Egoically. We have to preserve civilization.

CJ: I am reminded that there are two kinds of people in the world: the people who consider the future and what it might bring and say, "Well, I am just one person. I can't change it," or, the other people who say, "I can make a difference in what happens," because they know that one human being, armed with a practical plan and the truth, can truly change history.

Richard, I would like to thank you for being here with us once again on our topic, "The End Times."

RK: With a little different slant.

CJ: Just a slightly different slant. Thank you for sharing your information with us once again.

RK: You are very welcome, Charley.

CJ: I would like to take this moment to extend to those of you in the listening audience to be with us next week at this same time for "In Pursuit of the Ultimate Frontier."

I think it is always wise to remember that when we talk about the so-called "End Times" it is not the ultimate end of the planet or human life there, but there are greater civilizations yet to be built by a remnant surviving this cataclysm which also, I should remind people, is not being brought about by Higher Intelligences but merely is the natural geophysical outworking of the construction of our planet.

There have been psychics, persons who are sensitive to the future, who have the ability to read the Akashic Record; the future. Some are genuine prophets who have all seen, essentially, the same kinds of things, but it is always been difficult to pinpoint in time when these are going to occur. As soon as the nation of Israel was formed again, that alerted all the Biblical scholars, particularly those interested in prophecy, that these, indeed, were the End Times.

I think there is going to be two general responses. One that this is the end; the world is going to be completely destroyed so there is nothing to be done except await your fate.

And then there are others who have picked up on Brotherhood information that survival will be possible for at least a tenth of the population of the world. In order to retain some semblance of civilization, preparation has to be made for the event if and when it occurs. I think it is necessary that every prudent man think that this is a possibility, because so much has been said from so many different fields of study. If I give a list of things which are predicted, and one after another is coming true, then you can assume that more of them are going to be coming true and the whole pattern will fall into place, as the Brotherhoods have said.